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UNITED ST ATES ENV]RONIVIENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

- REGION 3 _
In the Matfer of: S ) Docket Neo. CW4'05 2013 0003
“Polo Development, Ine. o ). Proceeﬂmg to Assess a Class II Civil Pena]ty
AIM Georgia, LLC - ) Under Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act,
Joseph Zdrilich ) 33 U.S.C. §1319(g) "
Re§pbndeﬁts ) ' _ %ﬂ;‘ |
e COMPLAINT JAN - 5 2013
L - REGIGNAL HEARING CLERK
1. General Aﬂegaﬁon's ALE, BNVIRORIMENTAL

SRCTEOTIGH  AGERDY

I T]:LIS 1S an adjmmstratlve ac‘uon mstltuted by Region 5 of ﬂle United States

7 Environmental Profection Agency_("U.S. EPA“), pursuant 10 Section 309(g) of the Clean Water

Act, ("the Act™, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and the. Consolidatz_:d R’ules of Practice Governing the

A‘dﬁijjaistraﬁve Ass‘es sﬁxeﬁt of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Cormeéctive Action

-Orde1s and the Revoeation. Tx,rmmauou or Suspension of Perinits at-40 C T R Part 22. The
‘Administrator of U.S. EPA has delegated the authoniy to take thls action to the Regmnal
" Administrator of Regmn 5 who has delegated tlus authonty 10 the Duector‘ of the Water
:Dnusmn C omplmant in ﬂus action is the Director of the Water D1v1510n Region 5, U, S. EPA
R '2.: The Respondents in ‘thlS matter are: Polo Dev elopment Inc, 8599 Youngsto\m. |
‘Pﬂ:tsbulg Road, Paland, Ohm AIM Georgm, LLC, 2345 Stone Willow Way, Buford Georgia;
~and T oseph Zdnllch; 85’_99 Youngstown Pittsburgh Road, Polgnd, Ohio.
| 3, The Polg DéVe-lc)pmenf Site ig IOCa{ed north of Polo Boulevérd m Sec—tibn 1 1of
" Poland Townshlp, Mahomng County, Ohio ("the Polo Development S;te or “Site™). The current
O'WIEr of ec ord f@r ﬂns apprommatelyz 7 acre site is AIM Georgm, LLC, (see Exhiblt 1 fora

: map of the Site). The owner of yecord 'from Novemb;r’?ﬁ_, 2003 0 Septembar-ll, 2007 was Polo



.
Development, Inc. The Polo Developrﬁent Site aﬁuté Burgéss Run, a perennial relatively
permanent water which ﬂows to Yellow Creek and then to tﬁe Mahoning River. Boﬂ1 Ye]lc;w
Creek and the Mahoning River are navigabledn—faét waters of the United States under Secﬁon 10
of the Rivers and Harbors Act.

4. At all times relevant to the Complaint, one or more of the Respondents either -
owned, or otherwise controlled the real proi)erty that is the subject of this Complaint, and/or
otherwise controlled the activities that occurréd on such property.

5. Begimﬂné on or about November 2, 2006, and on subsequent dates, including but
not limited to dates in 2008, 2011 and 2012, one or more of the Respondents and/or persons
acting on their behalf, or with Respondents” consent and/or knowledge, used mechanized land-
clearing and earth-moving eéuipment to discharge dr;%:dge or fill material, including, among other
things, dirt, spoil, rock and sand into Burgess Run, adjacent imnamed waters, downstream waters
of Burgess Run and wetlands adjacent to and abutting the unnamed tributaries and Burgess Run
ai the Polo Development Site. See Impact Areas as marked of; Exhibit 1.

6.  Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 US.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of
pollutants inte navigable waters except in compliance with, -Qa_fe_r alia, a permit issued pursuant to
Section 404 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1344. Respondents did not have a permit pursuant to Section

404,33 U.S.C. § 1344 for the discharges of dredéed or fill material alleged in paragraph 5 above
and are in violation of Sééﬁon 301(aj, 33 U.S.C; § 1301(=).

7. Respondent Zdrilich is an individual. The remaining Respondents are a
corporétion, partonerskip or associatibﬁ. Therefore, each ResPOﬁdent 1s a “person” as :ieﬁned by

Section S02(5) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(5).
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8. Dirt, sand, and rock as as alleged in paragraph 5 above are each a “pc]lutént” as .
defined by Section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(6). . |

G, | Respondents’ additions of dirt, spoil, rock and sand to the waters and wetlands
identified in paragrai)h 5 above were “discharges™ as defined by Section 502(16) of the Act, 33
U.S.C. §1362(16).

10.  Therefore, Respondénts actions resuited in the “discharge bf a pollutant” as
defined by Section 502(12) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(12).

11.  The machinery used in the mechanized land clearing and earth moving, described
in paragraph 5 above ‘constitutes a "point soﬁrcc“ within the meaning of the definition set forth in
Section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).

12.  The Site was inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency énd
duration sufficient to support, and the under normal circumstances did support, a prevalence of
vegetation typicaily adapted for' life in saturated soil conditions.

13, | Therefore, the 2.7 acre Site contained “wetlands” as defined by the regulétioﬁ at
40_C.F.R4 § 232.3.

14. The Site contained approximately 200 feet of an unnamed tributary to Burgess
Run. -That tributary had relatively permanent flow as evidenced by the USGS topographic map,
aerial photography, the USGS national hydrographic datasef, and sife inépections.

15.  The water of the wetlands and the unnamed tribtrtaiy abutted and flowed into

Burgess Run.

16.  The water of Burgess Run flows approximately 3 river miles to Yellow Creek.
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17. | Yellow Creek flows approximgtes 2.5 river miles before it is a “Traditional
Navigable Water” as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 230.3(s)(1).

18.  Therefore, Respondents discharged pollutants from a point source into “navigable
Water_s” as defined by Section 5'02(7) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §1362(7).

19, Therefore, beginning around November 2, 2006, and on subsequent dates,
including but not limitedto dates in 2008, 2011 and 2012, Respondents were persons who
discharged iaqllutants from péint sources into navigable waters inl violation-of Sectipns 301 and
404 of the Act, 733 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1344

20. On October 26, 2011, U.S. EPA issued an administrative order to Respondents
pursuant to Section 309(za) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319a), requiring them to develop and
implement a plan to restore the ﬁlied area to wetlands (Restoration Order). On November 7,
2011, Respondents informed U.S. EPA that they would comply with the order and submit a
restoration plan for the wetlands. ' |

21.  Respondents submitted a Wetlands Resetration Plan Narrative dated January 2012
and updated in February 2012 (Réstoration Plan). On March 9, 2012, U.S. EPA approved of
Reslﬁondents’ restoration plan, _

22.  OnMarch 23 and May 25, 2012, Respondent Zdrilich informed U.S. EPA that he
would not conduct restéraﬁoﬁ work in accordance with the approved plan and would not restore
certain areas.

23, Fach day ffhe polluiants remained in navigable waters constituted an additional

day of violation of Sections 301 and 404 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1344,



II. Notice of Proposed Civil Penalty

Pursuant to Section 309(g)(2) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2), the Administrator may
assess a Class II civil penalty not to exceed $11,000.00 per day for each day during which the
violation continues, to a maximum amount of $157,500.00 for violations of Section 301 of the
Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, up until January 12, 2009, After January 12, 2009, the maximum total
penalty for violations of Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, increased to $177,500.00.
Based upon the facts alleged in this Complaint, and upon the nature, circuumstances, extent and
gravity of the violations alleged, as well as Respondents’ ability to pay, prior history of such
violations, culpability, economic benefit or savings (if any) resulting from the violations, and
such other matters as justice may require, U.S. EPA proposes a civil penalty of $30,500.

Respondents shall pay this penalty by certified or cashier’s check identifying the case
name and docket pumber on the check and made payable to "Treasurer; the United States of
America." The Respondents shall send the check, with a transmittal letter identifying the case
name and docket number to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9G00
Copies of the transmittal letter and check shall be sent to:

Melanie [{aveman (WW-161)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

77 West Jackson Boulevard

‘Chicago, IL 60604-3590;

and,



Richard J. Clarizio (C-141)

Associate Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, 1L 60604-3590.

Y. Notice of Opportunity to Request a Hearing

As provided in Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319()(2)(B), and Section

22.15 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. § 22.15, Respondents have the right to
request a hearing to contest any material fact alleged in this Complaint and to contest the
appropriateness of the amount of the proposed penalty. To request a hearing, a Respondent must
specifically make suc-:h a request m its Answer, which is discussed below.

Any hearing a Respondent requests regarding this Complaint will be.helc.i'a,nd conducted

in accordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a copy of which

accompanies this Complaint.
IV, Answer

If a Respondent contests any material fact alleged in this Complzint, contends that the
proposed penalty is inappropriate, or centends that it is entitied to judgment as a matter of faw,
-that' Respondent must file the original and one copy of a written Answer to this Complaint with
the Regional Hearing Clerk (E-197), Region 5, U.S. En\(ironmental Protection Agency, 77 West
Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, 1L, 60604—3596, within 30 days after service of this Complaint. In
computing any period of time allowed under this Complaint, the day of the évent from which the
designated period begins to run shall not be included. Saturdays, Sundays, and Federal holidays

shall be included, except when a time period expires on such, in which case the time period shall

be extended to the next business day.
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Each Respondent’s Answer must clearly and directly admit, deny, or explain each of the
factual allegations contained in the Complaint or state clearly it has no knowledge of a particular
. factual allegatibn. Where a Respondent states it has no knowledge of a particular factual
alleéation, the a_llegation 1s deemed dended.

Each Respondent’s Answer must also state:

a. The circumstances or arguments Respondent alleges constitute grounds of
defense;

b. The facts Respondenf disputes;
c. The basis for opposing the proposed penalty; and,
d. Whether Respondent requests a hearing.

A Respondent’s failure to admit, deny, or explain any material factual allegaﬁon '
contained in the Cqmplaint constitutes an adnussion of the allegation as fo that Respondent.

A copy of the Answer and all subsequent documents filed in ’{his action must be sent to
Richard J. Clarizio (C—I{H), Associate Regional CouﬁSel, (C-1413, U.S. Envirenmental Protection
Agency, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, IL, 60604-3590, who may be telephoned at
(312) 886-0559.

If a Respondent fails to file a written Answer within 30 days after service of this
Complaint, the Presiding Officer may issue a Default Order, gﬂer motion, pursuant to 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.17. Defanlt by a Respondent constitutes an admission of all factual allegations made in the
Complaint and a waiver of that Respondent’s right to. contest the factual allegations made in the
Complaint. The Defaulting Respondent must pay any penalty assessed in a Default Order
without furth& proceedings 30 days aﬁer the Order becomes a Final Order of the Administrator

of U.S. EPA under 40 C.F.R. § 22.27(c). A Respondent’s failure to pay the entire proposed
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penalty assessed by the Defauli Order by its due date may result in a civil action to collect the
assessed penalty, plus interest, attomey s fees, costs of collection proeeedmge and an addltlonal '
quarterly nonpayment penalty pursnant to Section 309(g)(9) of the Act, 33 U.S: C § 1319(2)(9).

Tf a Respondent requests a hearing on the Complaint, members of the public who have
exercised their right te comment will have a right under Section 309(g)(4)(B) of the Act,

33 U.8.C. § 1319%(g)(4)(B), to present evidence on the appropriateness of the penalty assesszeent.
Ifa hearing is not held, U.S. EPA may issue a Final Order assessing penalties aﬁd only members
of the public who commented on the proposed penalty assessment during the 30 day period
following issuance of the public notice AWiII have an additional 30 days to petition U.S. EPA to
set aside the Final Order assessing penalties and to hold a hearing thereon. U.S. EPA will grant
the petition and hold the hearing only if the petitioner’s evidence is material and was not
considered by U.S. EPA in the issuance of the Final Order assessing penalties.

V. Settlement Conference |

Whether or not a Respondent requests a hearing, a Respondent may request an informal
conference to dISCUSS the facts of this case and to arrive at a seftlement. To request a settlement
conference, please write to Melanie Haveman, Enforcement Officer, Water Division, Region 5,
United States Environimental Protection Agency, 77 West Jackson Boulevard (WW-167),
Chicago, IL, 60604-3590, or telephone her at (312) 886-2255.

A Respondent’s request for an informal settlement conference will not extend the 30 day
period for a Respondent to submit a written Answer and Request for Hearing. A Respondent
may pursue the informal conference procedure simultaneously with the adjudicatory hearing

procedure. U.S. EPA encourages all parties against whom a penaliy is proposed to pursue



. 9.
s-ettlement through an informal c_:onferenée; USs. EPA viill ot _reducé the p_e_ﬁ:alty Simp'ly _Beé-aﬁse
" such afcﬁn‘férensc 3s held. Any _'s'etﬂe;ﬁénf that- majgbe 'sea,c-hed as ;a'r'es_ult' of sﬁsﬁ.sonfefénée. _
‘ -lwil'] be embodiéd iﬁ a 'bcns'eut-Aéreefneijt and Finai Oi‘der-- VA I:{es'ponde'ﬁt’s'cbn’s‘ent foa
- Consent Agreement and Fﬁal Order sha]l conshtute a waiver of the right to Teques’r ahesrlng on
'cmy matter Stlpulated. to the1el%:\s o | o
VI Notlce to the State and Pubhc : i :‘??" |

U S. EPA has consulteu with the State of Ohlo 1eﬂard1ng this act1o-11 by mallm—g a copy of
this Complamt to 'Ihomas Harc;arﬂg 401 Sec_tlon Chleﬂ Dlv_ision of Sui:face Water, O_hjo
Environmemﬁ Protéstion Agsnclv, 30 Wcst-TOWh Sﬁeef, suite 70, éoluﬁsus‘ 01110-43‘2'15' aﬁd |
by otfenncr the State of Ohio an opportumty to commient on the ploposed penaltv U. S EPA,
COn‘temporaneously wﬂh the issuance of this Complalnt caused apubhc nottce 10 be published
onthe U, S EPA VuebSlte regardmg this' actmn | ‘

| VII Cunhnumu Obhvatmn o Comply

Nelther assessment nor payment. ofa penaltx, pursuant {o Section 309(g) of the Act
33 US.C. § 13 19( 3, shall affect aRespgudg:nt s contummg obhgat_lon ’{o'comply w1ﬂ1 fhe Act,
with any 'oﬂmr'Fedet'a! State df lscal lawj- of rergu]' atioﬁ and with 'any Cémﬁ]ﬁm% Or&cr is’suéd

“under Sectlon 309(3) of the Act, 33 US.C. § 1319(3)

kb e ',;,; 2015

TnﬂEa,G Hyde U . .Dae

| . Dizector, Water Division

: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
: Reg'ion 5
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